
Town of Montreat 
Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z)  

Meeting Agenda 
October 23, 2025, 10:30 a.m. 

Montreat Town Hall 
1210 Montreat Road, Black Mountain, NC 28711 

1 

I. CALL TO ORDER
• Welcome
• Moment of Silence

II. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
• Suggested Motion: To adopt the meeting agenda as presented/amended

III. ADOPTION OF JULY 17, 2025, MEETING MINUTES (pages xx -xx)
• Suggested Motion: To adopt the July 17, 2025, Meeting Minutes as drafted/amended.

IV. OLD BUSINESS

V. NEW BUSINESS
• CONDITIONAL ZONING REQUEST & PUBLIC HEARING

• ZONING ADMINISTRATOR UPDATES & DISCUSSION

VI. NEXT MEETING
• January 15, 2026, at 10:30 am

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

Packet Page 1



Planning & Zoning Commission 
  Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2025 
 

 

1 
 

 
  
Board members:  
   Julie Schell, Chair 

Clay Hamilton 
Sally Jenkins 
Gayle Sawyer 
Allen Crawford – ETJ Representative 

         
           
Board members absent:  Bill Tucker 
        Eleanor James  
        Mike Broussard 
        Daniel Hewitt, Alternate Member      

      
              
Town staff present:  Rich Caplan, Interim Zoning Administrator 
    Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
    Brandon Freeman, Town Attorney 
         
   
There were three members of the public present.  Chair Julie Schell called the meeting to order at 
10:33  a.m. and led the group in a moment of silence after a brief welcome.   
 

Agenda Approval 
 
Clay Hamilton moved to adopt the meeting agenda as presented. Sally Jenkins seconded, and the 
motion carried 5/0. 

 
Adoption of April 17, 2025, Meeting Minutes 

 
 

Chair Schell advised Town Clerk Angie Murphy of a few minor capitalization changes under “new 
business”. Clay Hamilton moved to adopt the April 17, 2025, Meeting Minutes as amended. Sally 
Jenkins seconded, and the motion carried 5/0.  
 

Oath of Office 
 
Ms. Murphy administered the Oath of Office to Alternate Member Gayle Sawyer and to Regular 
Member Sally Jenkins. 
 

Old Business 

Packet Page 2



Planning & Zoning Commission 
  Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2025 
 

 

2 
 

 
Chair Schell expressed her thanks to Interim Zoning Administrator Rich Caplan for joining the 
Montreat team. Mr. Kaplan looks forward to moving forward with progress. 
 
Subcommittee Updates: 

• Hillside Development Subcommittee consists of Chair Julie Schell, Secretary Eleanor James, 
Allen Crawford, and Sally Jenkins. Meeting date was set for September 11, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. 
with an alternate meeting date of September 10, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. 

• Montreat Sign Ordinance Subcommittee consists of Gayle Sawyer, Julie Schell, and Clay 
Hamilton. Meeting date was set for August 6, 2025, at 10:30 a.m. They will review the 
previously recommended edits. 

• Zoning Ordinance Amendments Research Subcommittee consists of Julie Schell, Allen 
Crawford, Clay Hamilton, Eleanor James, and Mason Blake as Board of Commissioners 
Representative.  Ms. Schell asked for an email to be sent to all members of the 
subcommittee about a proposed meeting in the first week of August. The suggested meeting 
date was August 6th at 9:00 a.m. An alternate date of August 5th at 9:00 a.m. was also 
planned. Interim Zoning Administrator Caplan suggested reviewing the floodplain ordinance 
and possibly creating a sediment control ordinance as a part of this subcommittee.  

 
New Business 

 
Mr. Kaplan advised that a Special Meeting could potentially need to be scheduled regarding a map 
amendment. Mr. Burns would like the map amendment reviewed in a timely manner. Mr. Kaplan 
expressed the importance of making sure all procedures are followed correctly due to litigation on 
previous procedural items. 
 
Mr. Kaplan suggested that new P&Z Commission members read the Montreat Tomorrow 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Mr. Kaplan also suggested that the Hillside Development Subcommittee and the Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment Research Subcommittee bring changes to the scheduled October meeting. Ms. Schell 
advised that she felt comfortable with the Sign Ordinance Subcommittee presenting their report in 
October but was hesitant to commit to Hillside Development at this time. She also felt it was 
unrealistic for the Zoning Ordinance Amendments Research Subcommittee to present in October. 
Clay Hamilton suggested at the next meetings for each subcommittee to list their priorities aiming 
for October.  
 
Mr. Kaplan briefly touched on the Wade Burns matter by saying that permits were issued to Mr. 
Burns and the house was constructed but the neighboring property owner has challenged him 
legally in court. Attorney Brandon Freeman advised that the courts had made a decision, but he is 
unsure when this matter will come back before the appropriate Montreat Board. Mr. Freeman 
reminded the Commission to treat any case that comes before the Board with the same legislative 

Packet Page 3



Planning & Zoning Commission 
  Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2025 
 

 

3 
 

eye as any other case brought before them. 
 
Mr. Kaplan advised that Duke Energy will soon be relocating power poles between the street and 
the MRA. He also advised that Montreat College’s McAllister Gym sustained a lot of damage from 
Hurricane Helene. The previous zoning administrator had placed numerous conditions on the 
issuance of zoning permits. Mr. Kaplan went on to say that there are problems between the college 
and their insurance company as well as the contractor keeping costs within budget. 
 
Clay Hamilton suggested the addition of an educational aspect to the floodplain ordinance. Sally 
Jenkins suggested asking for input from other municipalities. Mr. Hamilton made mention of the 
Town of Black Mountain reviewing Flat Creek. Ms. Jenkins mentioned a potential legislative bill 
which could limit what municipalities could do in the floodplain. Allen Crawford stated that the 
Board needed to consider what aspects of the floodplain were not followed. Ms. Schell stated that 
reminders about permits are needed prior to starting projects. 
 

Public Comment 
 

Wade Burns of 779 Foreman Siding Road in the ETJ began a lengthy synopsis of his current legal 
situation with regards to his home. Attorney Brandon Freeman reminded him that he only had 
three minutes to speak, and he was past his time limit. Mr. Burns asked Chair Schell for more time 
to speak. Ms. Schell allowed for an additional five minutes. Mr. Burns then explained the purpose of 
Conditional Uses. He was reminded by Chair Schell not to get into details of his application. Mr. 
Burns advised that a neighborhood meeting was held the previous Saturday which is a requirement 
of the application process for Conditional Zoning. He also advised that an application was filed with 
the Town of Montreat on July 16th. Mr. Burns stated that the matter will first come before the 
Planning & Zoning Commission for conditional zoning and then before the Board of Commissioners 
for their decision. Ms. Schell advised that his time was up. 
 

Next Meeting 
 

October 16, 2025, at 10:30 a.m. 
 

Adjournment 
 

Sally Jenkins moved to adjourn the meeting.  Clay Hamilton seconded, and the meeting was 
adjourned at 11:30 a.m. 
 
 
___________________________________   _________________________________ 
Julie Schell, Chair      Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
 
 

Packet Page 4



Planning & Zoning Commission 
  Regular Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2025 
 

 

4 
 

 

Packet Page 5



Packet Page 6



Packet Page 7



Packet Page 8



Packet Page 9



Packet Page 10



Packet Page 11



Packet Page 12



Packet Page 13



Packet Page 14



Packet Page 15



Packet Page 16



Packet Page 17



Packet Page 18



Packet Page 19



Packet Page 20



Packet Page 21



Packet Page 22



Packet Page 23



Packet Page 24



Packet Page 25



Packet Page 26



Packet Page 27



Packet Page 28



Packet Page 29



Packet Page 30



Packet Page 31



Packet Page 32



Packet Page 33



Packet Page 34



Packet Page 35



Packet Page 36



Packet Page 37



Packet Page 38



Packet Page 39



Packet Page 40



Packet Page 41



Packet Page 42



Packet Page 43



Packet Page 44



Packet Page 45



Packet Page 46



Packet Page 47



Packet Page 48



Packet Page 49



Packet Page 50



Packet Page 51



Packet Page 52



Packet Page 53



Packet Page 54



Packet Page 55



Packet Page 56



Packet Page 57



Packet Page 58



Packet Page 59



Packet Page 60



Packet Page 61



Packet Page 62



Packet Page 63



Packet Page 64



Packet Page 65



Packet Page 66



Packet Page 67



Packet Page 68



Packet Page 69



Packet Page 70



Packet Page 71



Packet Page 72



Packet Page 73



Packet Page 74



Packet Page 75



Packet Page 76



Packet Page 77



Packet Page 78



Packet Page 79



Packet Page 80



Packet Page 81



Packet Page 82



Packet Page 83



Packet Page 84


	10.23.25 PZC Agenda Final
	07172025P&ZMeetingMinutes
	Board members:
	Julie Schell, Chair
	Clay Hamilton
	Sally Jenkins
	Gayle Sawyer
	Agenda Approval
	Adoption of April 17, 2025, Meeting Minutes
	Chair Schell advised Town Clerk Angie Murphy of a few minor capitalization changes under “new business”. Clay Hamilton moved to adopt the April 17, 2025, Meeting Minutes as amended. Sally Jenkins seconded, and the motion carried 5/0.
	Oath of Office
	Ms. Murphy administered the Oath of Office to Alternate Member Gayle Sawyer and to Regular Member Sally Jenkins.
	Old Business
	Chair Schell expressed her thanks to Interim Zoning Administrator Rich Caplan for joining the Montreat team. Mr. Kaplan looks forward to moving forward with progress.
	Subcommittee Updates:
	 Hillside Development Subcommittee consists of Chair Julie Schell, Secretary Eleanor James, Allen Crawford, and Sally Jenkins. Meeting date was set for September 11, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. with an alternate meeting date of September 10, 2025, at 9:30 a.m.
	 Montreat Sign Ordinance Subcommittee consists of Gayle Sawyer, Julie Schell, and Clay Hamilton. Meeting date was set for August 6, 2025, at 10:30 a.m. They will review the previously recommended edits.
	 Zoning Ordinance Amendments Research Subcommittee consists of Julie Schell, Allen Crawford, Clay Hamilton, Eleanor James, and Mason Blake as Board of Commissioners Representative.  Ms. Schell asked for an email to be sent to all members of the subco...
	New Business
	Mr. Kaplan advised that a Special Meeting could potentially need to be scheduled regarding a map amendment. Mr. Burns would like the map amendment reviewed in a timely manner. Mr. Kaplan expressed the importance of making sure all procedures are follo...
	Mr. Kaplan suggested that new P&Z Commission members read the Montreat Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan.
	Mr. Kaplan also suggested that the Hillside Development Subcommittee and the Zoning Ordinance Amendment Research Subcommittee bring changes to the scheduled October meeting. Ms. Schell advised that she felt comfortable with the Sign Ordinance Subcommi...
	Mr. Kaplan briefly touched on the Wade Burns matter by saying that permits were issued to Mr. Burns and the house was constructed but the neighboring property owner has challenged him legally in court. Attorney Brandon Freeman advised that the courts ...
	Mr. Kaplan advised that Duke Energy will soon be relocating power poles between the street and the MRA. He also advised that Montreat College’s McAllister Gym sustained a lot of damage from Hurricane Helene. The previous zoning administrator had place...
	Clay Hamilton suggested the addition of an educational aspect to the floodplain ordinance. Sally Jenkins suggested asking for input from other municipalities. Mr. Hamilton made mention of the Town of Black Mountain reviewing Flat Creek. Ms. Jenkins me...
	Public Comment
	Wade Burns of 779 Foreman Siding Road in the ETJ began a lengthy synopsis of his current legal situation with regards to his home. Attorney Brandon Freeman reminded him that he only had three minutes to speak, and he was past his time limit. Mr. Burns...

	ConditionalZoningWade



